ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE TRANSPCORTATI ON STANDI NG COW TTEE
March 29, 2011
1:44 p. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Peggy W1l son, Chair
Representative Lance Pruitt, Vice Chair
Representative Eric Feige

Representati ve Craig Johnson
Representati ve Max G uenberg
Representati ve Pete Petersen

VEVMBERS ABSENT
Representati ve Cat hy Engstrom Miunoz
COWM TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 57

"An Act authorizing nunicipalities and nonprofit organizations
to sponsor a program to encourage the safe use of bicycles as a
node of transportation, and anending the duties of the
Department of Transportation and Public Facilities to include
adm ni stration of state funds appropriated for that purpose.”

- MOVED CSHB 57(TRA) OUT OF COW TTEE
HOUSE BI LL NO. 62
"An Act relating to excluding notorcycles and notor-driven
cycles fromthe passenger vehicle rental tax."
- MOVED CSHB 62( TRA) OUT OF COW TTEE
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 57

SHORT TITLE: BI CYCLE PROGRAM
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) SEATON

01/ 18/ 11 (H) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/7/11

01/ 18/ 11 (H) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 18/ 11 (H) TRA, FIN

02/ 10/ 11 (H) TRA AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 17

02/ 10/ 11 (H) Heard & Hel d

02/ 10/ 11 (H) M NUTE( TRA)

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -1- March 29, 2011



03/ 10/ 11 (H) TRA AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 17
03/ 10/ 11 (H) Heard & Hel d

03/ 10/ 11 (H) M NUTE( TRA)

03/ 29/ 11 (H) TRA AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 17
BILL: HB 62

SHORT TITLE: PASSENGER VEHI CLE RENTAL TAX
SPONSOR('s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) HOLMES, HERRON

01/ 18/ 11 (H) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 7/ 11

01/ 18/ 11 (H READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 18/ 11 (H) TRA, FIN

03/ 17/ 11 (H) TRA AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 17

03/ 17/ 11 (H) Heard & Hel d

03/ 17/ 11 (H) M NUTE( TRA)

03/ 29/ 11 (H TRA AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 17

W TNESS REG STER

REPRESENTATI VE PAUL SEATON

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Presented the changes in the proposed
conmittee substitute for HB 57.

BOB LAURI E, Transportation Planner

Di vi sion of Program Devel opnent

Department of Transportation & Public Facilities (DOT&PF)

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Testified and answered questions during the
di scussi on of HB 57.

REPRESENTATI VE LI NDSEY HOLMES

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of HB 62.

M KE COUMBE, St aff

Representati ve Li ndsey Hol nes

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented HB 62, on behalf of one of the
joint prinme sponsors of the bill.

NANCY HULL, Oaner

Al aska Mot orcycl e Advent ures

Pal mer, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of HB 62.

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 2- March 29, 2011



PHI LLI P FREENVAN

Al aska Ri der Tours

G rdwood, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of HB 62.

BARRY MATTESON, Oaner

House of Harl ey

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of HB 62.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
1:44:11 PM

CHAIR PEGGY WLSON called the House Transportation Standing
Committee neeting to order at 1:44 p.m Representati ves W1 son,
Johnson, Petersen and Guenberg were present at the call to
order. Representatives Feige and Pruitt arrived as the neeting
was in progress.

HB 57- Bl CYCLE PROGRAM

1: 44: 37 PM

CHAIR P. WLSON announced that the first order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO 57, "An Act authorizing nunicipalities and
nonprofit organizations to sponsor a program to encourage the
safe use of bicycles as a node of transportation, and anending
the duties of the Departnment of Transportation and Public
Facilities to include adm nistration of state funds appropriated
for that purpose.”

1: 45: 03 PM

REPRESENTATI VE PAUL SEATON, Al aska State Legislature, explained
the commttee substitute (CS) for HB 57 would address safety
prograns. It would nmake it clear that grants could be used for
safety prograns for notorists and bicyclists. The bill would
create a grant program admnistered by the Departnment of
Transportation & Public Facilities (DOT&F) so |ocal nonprofits
or nmuni ci pal governnment could make applications for grants. The
purpose of the grants would be to encourage the safe use of
bi cycl es and bicycling as a node of transportation. The program
woul d allow communities to install bike racks or bike garages,
if needed, or the grant could be used to purchase bike trailers
so people could use bicycles as a node of transportation to use

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 3- March 29, 2011



for trips to the store. The bicycle would be used as an
alternative to vehicle use, he said.

1:46: 59 PM

BOB LAURIE, Transportation Pl anner, D vision of Pr ogr am
Devel opnent, Departnment of Transportation & Public Facilities
(DOT&PF), introduced hinself.

1:47:53 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked whet her he recalled the substance
of an amendnent to a prior version of this bill [last
| egi sl ature. He asked whether the anmendnent would address the
i ssue.

MR. LAURI E answered that HB 57 is clear and straightforward.
1:48: 51 PM

CHAIR P. WLSON, after first determning no one else wi shed to
testify, closed public testinmony on HB 57. She pointed out the
fiscal note is a zero fiscal note.

1:49: 00 PM

REPRESENTATIVE PRU TT noved to report the proposed comittee
substitute (CS) for HB 57, |abeled 27-LS0315\B, Kane, 2/18/11,
out of conmttee wth individual recommendations and the
acconpanyi ng fiscal notes. There being no objection, the CSHB
57(TRA) was reported from the House Transportation Standing
Comm ttee.

1:49: 38 PM

The conmmttee took an at-ease from1:49 to 1:51 p. m

HB 62- PASSENGER VEHI CLE RENTAL TAX

1:51:42 PM

CHAIR P. WLSON announced that the final order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO 62, "An Act relating to excluding notorcycles
and notor-driven cycles fromthe passenger vehicle rental tax."

1:52: 01 PM

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -4- March 29, 2011



REPRESENTATI VE LI NDSEY HOLMES, thanked nenbers and asked her
staff, M ke Counbe, to wal k nmenbers through the bill.

1:52:29 PM

M KE COUMBE, Staff, Representative Lindsey Hol mes, on behalf of
one of the joint prime sponsors of the bill, explained that HB
62 would exenpt notorcycles from the passenger vehicle rental

t ax. He clarified that this bill only refers to notorcycle
rental taxes and not to sales, inport registration or anything
else. This bill would help support |ong-range econom c benefits
of small businesses catering to independent travelers. The
people who rent notorcycles tend to visit renote areas of
Al aska. They stay at smaller hotels and eat at |oca

restaurants, which is good for Alaska s econony. Maki ng an

exception for seasonal rental businesses is not new, he said

Wen the original |law was passed, notor hone or recreational
vehicle rentals were given the lower rate of three percent
vehicle rental tax due to the seasonal nature of the rentals.
Wth a short rental season, businesses offering notorcycle

rentals face simlar challenges. The businesses nust pay to
keep their notorcycle fleet in storage during the long w nter
nont hs. These costs are passed on to tourists and others who

rent nmotorcycles. Adding a 10 percent passenger vehicle renta
tax to the total rental makes the notorcycle rental rate very
high conpared to other states. In 2003, when the passenger
vehicle rental tax was under discussion, notorcycle rentals were
not even considered. Four years |ater the Departnent of Revenue
(DOR) noticed notorcycle rental businesses were active and
notified the handful of businesses that they nust also collect
the passenger vehicle rental tax. Since the notor vehicle
rental tax was enacted, the |legislature has exenpted other
vehicle rentals that inadvertently fell under the definition of
passenger vehicles, including taxicabs, rental trucks, and
warranty work perforned by auto dealers. The seasonal nature of
the notorcycle rental business, along wth the high cost
associated wth these businesses, and the Ilow nunber of
busi nesses are reasons to exenpt notorcycle rentals from this
t ax.

1:55:32 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG commented that the sponsor statenent
reads, "It is difficult to cook a nmeal in ones notorcycle.” He
found this anmusing but informative.

REPRESENTATI VE HOLMES comment ed on the sense of hunor.

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 5- March 29, 2011



CHAIR P. WLSON referred to the fiscal note and pointed out the
total tax collected is $12,000 for notorcycle rentals.

1: 57: 06 PM

REPRESENTATIVE PRU TT expressed surprise that recreationa
vehicle rental tax rate is set at three percent for recreational
vehi cles (RVs). He asked for the vehicle rental tax rate for
not or vehi cl es.

MR. COUMBE answered that nmotor vehicles are taxed 10 percent.

1:57: 54 PM

NANCY HULL, Owmner, Al aska Mdtorcycle Adventures, stated that
this is her 18th summer renting notorcycles to tourists. She
expl ai ned that her custoners typically have a big "bucket [ist"
of places in the world they want to ride their notorcycles. In
2003, when House Bill 271 was passed relating to vehicle renta

taxes, the legislature did not hold any discussion on notorcycle
rental businesses and tourism in Al aska. Her business was not
aware of the vehicle rental tax so she did not collect initially

it. In 2008, a DOR enpl oyee contacted her business to advise
her that she was required to collect the 10 percent vehicle
rental tax. She explained notorcycle rental rates, which are

$125 to $240 per day. Thus, the tax on a notorcycle with the
rate of $200 per day would be $20 per day or $140 for a one week
rental. However, the tax for an RV rental of $200 per day would
only be $34.50 per week.

2:00: 30 PM

MS. HULL pointed out that cruise ship passengers only pay about
$34.50 in taxes for seven days. The taxes on notorcycle rentals
have been significantly higher. She recalled one customer
rented two notorcycles and paid $386 in vehicle rental tax. She
hi ghlighted that many notorcycle customers travel to renote
areas on the road system such as Paxson. Communities that
rarely have seen RV tourists receive tourist business from
notorcycle travelers. She asked nenbers to consider elimnating
the tax so potential custoners could afford to cone to Al aska.
In response to Chair P. WIlson, she restated that the average
notorcycle rental fee is $180 to $200 per day.

2:03:46 PM

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 6- March 29, 2011



REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN asked whether the $200 also would
i ncl ude i nsurance costs.

M5. HULL stated the rental fee includes insurance. She
expl ai ned that exenptions from the tax are not specified in the
law so insurance is also taxed. She related that RVs have
exenptions on a wde range of item but exenptions for
not orcycles are not currently all owed. In response to Chair P
Wl son, she stated that nost of her custonmers bring their own
hel net s.

2:05:42 PM

PH LLI P FREEMAN, Al aska Rider Tours, stated that his conpany
provi des notorcycle rentals in Spenard. He related that he had
been asked to repay back taxes. He has been in business for 12
years, has ten enployees, and a fleet of 40 notorcycles. He
pointed out that he conpetes with notorcycle rentals in the
Lower 48. He said if owners had been notified of the tax, they
could have collectively asked the legislature to consider an
exenpti on. H s custonmers want to travel to Manley Hot Springs,
Central, and Prudhoe Bay, he said. The ten percent tax has been
tough on his business due to the short rental season, which is
about 12 weeks long. In response to Chair P. WIlson, he advised
that the average notorcycle rental fees per day range from $150
to $200.

2:08: 36 PM

REPRESENTATI VE FEIGE related he has a specific nunber of days
rental in the twelve week season. He asked whether this bil
woul d i ncrease his notorcycle rentals.

MR. FREEMAN responded while he did not believe that the length
of the rental period would increase due to the constraints due
to weather, the price point would make him nore conpetitive. He

agreed that nany people have a bucket list of places to go. |If
his prices are higher than conpetitors in other places, it
stands to reason that his business will have fewer custoners

In further response to Representative Feige, he agreed HB 62
woul d nake notorcycle rentals nore appealing.

2:09:57 PM

CHAIR P. WLSON asked whether he was required to repay back
taxes for notorcycle vehicle rentals.

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -7- March 29, 2011



MR. FREEMAN answered he visited the tax office and was granted
the option to collect the vehicle rental tax from that point

f orward. The DOR explained that the |awyers never considered
not orcycl es when the initial bill passed the |egislature.
2:10: 36 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON asked whether people boycott travel to
Al aska since the notorcycle rental rates are higher

MR. FREEMAN responded absol utely. He related a comon question
people ask himis why they should pay twice as nuch to come to
Al aska. Additionally, he related that nore people are conparing
prices due to the downturn in the econony. Custoners may decide
go to New Zeal and instead, he said.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON asked whether this tax break would cause
nore people to conme to Alaska and if he has any commitnment from
peopl e.

MR. FREEMAN offered his belief that nore people would travel to
Al aska. He offered to track this with his custoners. In
further response to Representative Johnson he said he has
specifically been turned down due to the tax rate.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON offered his belief that cutting taxes
woul d increase notorcycle rental businesses. He said that if HB
62 is good for notorcycle rentals it is also good for business
in Al aska.

2:12: 30 PM

REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN recal led during the Dalton H ghway trip
the commttee took last sumrer that they encountered several

groups of notorcycle riders on the Dalton Hi ghway. He offered
his belief chances are good that some notorcycle travelers had
rented notorcycles. He suggested advertising could be

attractive and mght include traveling to "the end of the road,"
whi ch would be the Arctic Ocean. He thought HB 62 namy encourage
nore people to conme to Al aska.

2:13:23 PM
BARRY MATTESON, Omner, House of Harley, stated that his conpany
just started in the notorcycle renting business. He stated

that the base rate $250 a day. He offered that the Lower 48
rate ranges from $95 to $125 per day. He offered his belief

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 8- March 29, 2011



that he |oses potential rental business due to the prices. He
related that the passenger rental tax just nmakes it nore
expensive for his custoners 1In 2010 the House of Harley rented
notorcycles to approximately 200 rental custoners, largely
traveling from the Lower 48. As previous testinony indicated,
these travelers are nore likely to eat in restaurants and stay

in hotels. Hi s business enploys an additional two seasonal
enpl oyees, incurs training, plus his core enployees work an
additional 10 to 20 hours to maintain the fleet during the
of f season. He characterized his effort as labor intensive to

mai ntain 15 notorcycl es. The average cost of a Harl ey-Davidson
notorcycl e ranges from $17,000 to $20, 000. The notorcycles are
turned around at 18,000 mles, he added. The notorcycle renta
busi ness has been an expensive endeavor and the additional 10
percent tax creates a burden such that rentals may not continue
to work for the House of Harley. In response to Chair P
Wl son, he indicated his rental fleet size ranges from 12 to 15
not or cycl es.

2:16: 28 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON observed this seens to be a capital
intensive business with a short tine period to recover the
busi ness i nvest nment .

MR. MATTESON answered yes. He responded that the House of
Harl ey does 90 percent of its rental business in three nonths.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON asked whether M. WMiatteson was convi nced
this bill would increase his business.

MR. MATTESON responded he was unsure whether it would increase
his business but wthout HB 62 that he nmay not have his
nmot orcycl e rental business.

2:17:06 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked whether vehicles such as snow
machi nes are rented in the winter encounter the sane issues.

MR. MATTESON answered that the House of Harley does not rent
snow machi nes.

M5. HULL answered that Alaska Mtorcycle Adventures does not
rent snow machi nes but only rents notorcycl es.

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 9- March 29, 2011



MR. FREEMAN responded that Alaska Rider Tours only rents
not or cycl es.

2:17:54 PM

CHAIR P. WLSQON, after first determning no one else wished to
testify, closed public testinony on HB 62.

2:18: 38 PM

REPRESENTATI VE PRUI TT made a notion to adopt Amendnent 1, A 1,
| abel ed 27-LS0323\A. 1, Luckhaupt, 3/17/11, which read, as
foll ows:

Page 1, line 2, follow ng "tax":
Insert "; and providing for an effective date"

Page 2, following line 12:
Insert a new bill section to read:
"* Sec. 2. This Act takes effect immediately under
AS 01.10.070(c)."
There being no objection, Arendrment 1 was adopt ed.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON asked whether HB 62 could be retroacti ve.

REPRESENTATI VE FEI GE asked whether the effective date could be
dated January 1, 2010.

CHAIR P. WLSON did not think it would make nuch difference.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON stated that if retroactivity would help
provide relief he would support it to help small businesses.

2:19:58 PM
REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noved to report the HB 62, as anended,
from the commttee wth individual recomendations and the
acconpanying fiscal note. There being no objection, CSHB
62(TRA) was reported from the House Transportation Standing
Comm ttee.
2:20: 50 PM

ADJ OURNVENT

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -10- March 29, 2011



There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Transportation Standing Committee neeting was adjourned at 2:20
p. m

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -11- March 29, 2011



